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 1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

 2                (Transcript continues in sequence from

 3      Volume 9.)

 4                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  I've got 35 after.

 5                MR. SAYLER:  Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the

 6           Office of Public Counsel, would it be possible for

 7           the remainder of our witnesses to be excused,

 8           Ms. Donna Ramas and Dr. Woolridge?

 9                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is there any objection to

10           excusing the rest of OPC's witnesses?  Staff?

11                MS. KLANCKE:  No objection.

12                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

13                MR. SAYLER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

14                MAJOR THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, also, with

15           Mr. Gorman, I would like to get him excused.

16                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  One more time.

17                MAJOR THOMPSON:  Mr. Gorman, I would like to

18           get him excused.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

20                MAJOR THOMPSON:  Proceed?

21                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.

22      Thereupon,

23                           GREG R. MEYER

24      was called as a witness and, having been first duly

25      sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
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 1                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

 2      BY MAJOR THOMPSON:

 3           Q.   Can you state your name and business address?

 4           A.   Greg Meyer.  My business address is 16690

 5      Swingley Ridge Road, Chesterfield, Missouri, 63017.

 6           Q.   And your occupation?

 7           A.   I'm a senior consultant for Brubaker &

 8      Associates.

 9           Q.   Did you file direct testimony in this hearing?

10           A.   Yes, I did.

11           Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections?

12           A.   No, I do not.

13           Q.   If you were asked the same questions today,

14      would your answers be the same?

15           A.   Yes, they would.

16                MAJOR THOMPSON:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to

17           insert Mr. Meyer's prefiled testimony into the

18           record.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Mr. Meyer's

20           prefiled direct testimony into the record as though

21           read.

22

23

24

25
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 1      BY MAJOR THOMPSON:

 2           Q.   Can you provide a brief summary of your

 3      testimony?

 4           A.   Yes.  Good morning, Commissioners.  In this

 5      proceeding I've proposed seven adjustments in my direct

 6      testimony.  After discussions with Gulf, two of my

 7      issues were settled or stipulated, so I have five

 8      remaining issues.  Some of these have been discussed

 9      extensively with you before, so I'll go through them

10      quickly.

11                I have an issue with land held for future use

12      or plant held for future use regarding the North

13      Escambia generation site.  The FEA opposes including

14      this investment in rate base at this time because there

15      has not been a determination of need issued from this

16      Commission.  In addition, the FEA questions whether

17      AFUDC should be allowed on those dollars invested at

18      this time.

19                Rate case expense, the FEA is proposing a

20      normalization methodology for rate case expense, where

21      we would propose that $700,000 be included in rate case

22      expense over a four-year period.  By normalizing rate

23      case expense, you do not have to include an unamortized

24      balance in rate base.

25                Storm recovery allowance, the FEA has proposed
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 1      that the storm recovery allowance be no more than

 2      $5 million a year.  And the 5 million was, as indicated

 3      in my testimony, derived from the 3.5 million that this

 4      Commission found in Gulf's last rate case, adjusted for

 5      inflation.  Again, though, I want to iterate that that's

 6      a ceiling and not the -- that should go no more than

 7      that.  Obviously, the Commission has the discretion to

 8      reduce that amount.

 9                In labor expense, you've heard extensive

10      testimony throughout the week on this.  The FEA has

11      proposed that the labor expense be adjusted for the last

12      known level of actual employees on Gulf's payroll.  At

13      the time of this testimony, the payroll levels

14      included -- or the employee levels included at Gulf were

15      1,360 employees.  That was as of June -- 1,365, excuse

16      me.

17                Actual employee levels should be -- it's our

18      position that actual employee levels should be used to

19      the extent that those levels of employees can be shown

20      to be needed to provide safe and adequate service.

21                Finally, my last issue is the margins on sales

22      for resale.  We believe that the level included in the

23      case, the margin level included in this case is

24      understated when you compare it to the actual results

25      that Gulf reported in 2010, the 12 months ending
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 1      June 30th of 2011, and the results that are now

 2      available for September 30th of 2011.

 3                This concludes my summary.  Thank you.

 4                MAJOR THOMPSON:  I would like to make

 5           Mr. Meyer available for cross.  And his button was

 6           still green.

 7                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors?  Staff?

 8                MS. KLANCKE:  No questions.

 9                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?

10                Redirect.

11                MAJOR THOMPSON:  Can Mr. Meyer be excused for

12           the remainder of the case?

13                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Meyer can be excused.

14                Major Thompson, you have David Stowe.  You

15           need to move his.

16                MAJOR THOMPSON:  I believe all his prefiled

17           testimony has already been stipulated and is in the

18           record.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  It has already been moved

20           into the record?

21                MAJOR THOMPSON:  I believe so.

22                MS. KLANCKE:  That is correct.

23                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

24                MAJOR THOMPSON:  And I do not believe he had

25           exhibits.

                   ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC.

                                                            1774

 1                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And, Staff, your two

 2           witnesses, has all their stuff been moved?  It *has

 3           in order?

 4                MS. KLANCKE:  That's correct, pursuant to

 5           stipulation.

 6                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I don't have that 84 and 85

 7           have been moved into the record.

 8                MS. KLANCKE:  It was my understanding that it

 9           was done when we did our recitation, but just to be

10           on the safe side, we can address those now.  They

11           were -- both staff witnesses were stipulated by all

12           witnesses, and pursuant to that stipulation,

13           Numbers 84 and 85 were stipulated.

14                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Do you have any objections

15           to 84 and 85 going into the record?

16                We'll move those two into the record.

17                (Exhibit Numbers 84 and 85 were admitted into

18      the record.)

19                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, just so I can be

20           clear, I don't recall any of those three pieces of

21           testimony, Mr. Stowe's or the two staff, the

22           testimony having been inserted.  I may be recalling

23           wrong, but in an abundance of caution, you might

24           want to insert it at this time.

25                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  You're talking about the two
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 1           staff witnesses?

 2                MR. MELSON:  The two staff witnesses and FEA's

 3           witness Stowe.

 4                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will move their prefiled

 5           direct testimony into the record as though read.
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 1                MS. KLANCKE:  In addition, just to be on the

 2           safe side, Stowe's deposition, pursuant to

 3           stipulation, was reflected as having been

 4           stipulated, but just in case, let's ensure for

 5           complete necessary that it has been moved into the

 6           record.

 7                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll show it moved into the

 8           record.

 9                We're at rebuttal?  Okay.

10                MR. MELSON:  We call Dr. Vander Weide.

11                Mr. Chairman, before we start with

12           Dr. Vander Weide, our rebuttal witness Thompson was

13           presenting rebuttal on only one issue, and that

14           issue has now been stipulated.  This is just to

15           announce to the Chair that we are going to withdraw

16           that testimony and will not be presenting his

17           rebuttal.  He's listed as the very last witness, so

18           we don't save any time until later this afternoon.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  I'll strike anybody

20           as soon as you want them struck.

21                MR. MELSON:  And with that, we ask that he be

22           excused so he can return to work.

23                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Is there no need for

24           Mr. Thompson to stay, no objections?  We will

25           excuse him.  So be it.
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 1      Thereupon,

 2                       JAMES H. VANDER WEIDE

 3      was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Gulf Power

 4      Company and, having been first duly sworn, was examined

 5      and testified as follows:

 6                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

 7      BY MR. MELSON:

 8           Q.   Dr. Vander Weide, let me remind you you're

 9      still under oath.  Would you please state your name and

10      business address.

11           A.   Yes.  My name is James H. Vander Weide, and my

12      business address is 3606 Stoneybrook Drive, Durham,

13      North Carolina.

14           Q.   And what is your occupation or profession?

15           A.   I am Research Professor of Finance and

16      Economics at Duke University and president of Financial

17      Strategy Associates.

18           Q.   And did you prefile rebuttal testimony in this

19      docket dated November 4th consisting of 76 pages?

20           A.   Yes, I did.

21           Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

22      testimony?

23           A.   Yes.  I have two that are both on page 66.

24           Q.   Page 66?

25           A.   Yes, of my rebuttal testimony.  On lines 13
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 1      and 14, there are the letters TB and AB that are

 2      definitions of the terms that are in the equation that

 3      is just above that.  That should be a TB and AB.  And

 4      then on line 24, after the comma, I say, "I obtain a

 5      risk of 5.78 percent."  That should be, "I obtain a risk

 6      premium of 5.78 percent."  So the word "premium" should

 7      be inserted after the word risk.

 8           Q.   And with those changes, if I were to ask you

 9      the same questions today, would your answers be the

10      same?

11           A.   Yes, they would.

12                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, I would ask that

13           Dr. Vander Weide's rebuttal testimony be inserted

14           into the record as though read.

15                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert

16           Dr. Vander Weide's rebuttal testimony into the

17           record as though read.

18

19

20

21
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 1      BY MR. MELSON:

 2           Q.   And do you have an Exhibit JVW-3 attached to

 3      your rebuttal testimony consisting of three schedules;

 4      is that correct?

 5           A.   Yes, I do.

 6           Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

 7      exhibit?

 8           A.   No, I do not.

 9                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, that has been

10           pre-identified as Exhibit 158.

11                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So noted.

12      BY MR. MELSON:

13           Q.   Dr. Vander Weide, could you give us a brief

14      summary of your testimony?

15           A.   Yes.  My rebuttal testimony responds to the

16      testimonies of Dr. Woolridge and Mr. Gorman, who

17      appeared this morning to summarize their testimonies.

18                Based on my analysis of Dr. Woolridge's and

19      Mr. Gorman's testimonies, I conclude that they have

20      significantly underestimated Gulf Power's cost of

21      equity.  My initial and updated cost of equity estimates

22      continue to -- results continue to demonstrate that my

23      recommended 11.7 percent cost of equity for Gulf Power

24      is reasonable.

25                I demonstrated in my rebuttal testimony that

                   ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC.

                                                            1896

 1      Dr. Woolridge and Mr. Gorman rely primarily on the

 2      discounted cash flow model to estimate Gulf Power's cost

 3      of equity.  However, there are several reasons why their

 4      DCF results underestimate Gulf Power's cost of equity,

 5      including their use of an annual DCF model, even though

 6      the companies and their proxy groups all pay dividends

 7      quarterly, and their use of historical and sustainable

 8      growth rates, even though the financial literature

 9      provides overwhelming evidence that utility stock prices

10      reflect analysts' growth rates rather than historical or

11      sustainable growth rates.

12                Mr. Gorman stated this morning that the DCF

13      model requires sustainable growth rates, and

14      Dr. Woolridge stated this morning that there is evidence

15      that analysts' growth rates are optimistic.  I strongly

16      disagree with both of those statements.

17                The DCF model requires the growth rates of

18      investors, because investors' growth rates are reflected

19      in stock prices.  And there is very strong evidence that

20      investors use analysts' growth rates in making stock buy

21      and sell decisions and that analysts' growth rates are

22      reflected in stock prices.

23                In addition, Dr. Woolridge is undoubtedly

24      incorrect when he states that there is unanimous opinion

25      that analysts' growth rates are optimistic.  I cite
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 1      numerous articles, approximately 25 or 26, in my

 2      rebuttal testimony that demonstrate that analysts'

 3      growth rates are not overly optimistic and that

 4      analysts' growth rates are the growth rates that are

 5      impounded in stock prices.

 6                In contrast to the low DCF results obtained by

 7      Dr. Woolridge and Mr. Gorman, my updated DCF application

 8      produces a DCF result equal to 10.8 percent.

 9                In addition to my discussions of their DCF

10      results, I also discuss Mr. Gorman's risk premium

11      analysis.  He provides a risk premium analysis based on

12      allowed rates of return for electric utilities compared

13      to interest rates on both utility and Treasury bonds.

14                I demonstrate that he fails to recognize that

15      the allowed risk premium increases when interest rates

16      decline.  And if he had correctly recognized the strong

17      inverse relationship, which I demonstrate statistically,

18      he would have obtained a risk premium estimate of Gulf

19      Power's cost of equity in the range of 10.5 to

20      10.7 percent.  This latter range of equity -- cost of

21      equity estimates is also consistent with the evidence

22      that I presented -- that I discussed yesterday that the

23      average allowed rate of return for integrated electric

24      utilities over the first nine months of 2011 is

25      approximately 10 1/2 percent.
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 1                Mr. Gorman stated this morning that the

 2      average allowed return was 10 percent.  That is not only

 3      incorrect for all electric utilities -- it's really

 4      10.2 percent for all electric utilities -- but more

 5      relevant, it's incorrect for integrated electric

 6      utilities such as Gulf Power.  Integrated electric

 7      utilities are considered to be more risky than

 8      distribution-only electric utilities, and hence they

 9      have higher allowed -- average allowed rates of return

10      on equity than distribution-only utilities.

11                With regard to their comments on the financial

12      risk adjustment, I demonstrate that their financial risk

13      adjustment depends on their opinion that investors

14      measure the financial risk of their proxy companies

15      based on book value capital structures.  I also disagree

16      with that comment, because investors measure financial

17      risk based on market value capital structures, and

18      financial experts agree on that unanimously.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Dr. Vander Weide, I need you

20           to sum this up in about 30 seconds.

21                THE WITNESS:  Yes.  I'm on my summary

22           statement.

23                In summary, Dr. Woolridge and Mr. Gorman's

24           recommendations are based on flawed analyses.  The

25           Commission should reject their recommendations and
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 1           grant Gulf Power an authorized return on equity of

 2           11.7 percent.

 3                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

 4                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, counsel forgot to

 5           hand out a late-filed exhibit that had been asked

 6           for yesterday from Dr. Vander Weide.  The parties

 7           have seen it before, but I meant to get it up on

 8           your chairs before we brought him to the stand, and

 9           we're handing it out now.

10                MR. YOUNG:  Also, with that, Mr. Chairman,

11           Late-filed Exhibit Number 185 that OPC requested is

12           also being handed to you.

13                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Young, you're saying

14           that this one has already been numbered as 185?

15                MR. YOUNG:  Yes, sir.  It has already been

16           entered into the record, is my understanding.

17                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, it hadn't been entered

18           into the record, but we gave it a number.

19                MR. YOUNG:  I'm sorry.  Can you repeat that?

20                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  My understanding was we

21           didn't enter it into the record.  We just gave it a

22           number.  We were going to allow -- OPC was going to

23           see if they had any objections to it, and then you

24           were going to enter it.

25                MR. YOUNG:  Okay.  Yes, correct.
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 1                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And, Mr. McGlothlin, I take

 2           it you don't have any objections to 185.

 3                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I do not.

 4                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter 185 into the

 5           record.

 6                (Exhibit Number 185 was admitted into the

 7      record.)

 8                MR. MELSON:  And Dr. Vander Weide is tendered

 9           for cross.

10                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff, any questions of

11           Dr. Vander Weide?

12                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I do, if you want to go to

13           the intervenors first.

14                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I thought you wanted to only

15           address the questions that Staff had asked.

16                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'm sorry if I misunderstood

17           or you misunderstood me.  I did not say that I

18           would limit my cross to that.  Once you clarified

19           the limitations on the company, I was satisfied

20           that I had no objection to that process, but I do

21           have some cross of this witness.  I suppose we

22           spoke past each other.  I'm sorry.

23                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Then I misunderstood.  I was

24           looking forward to that.  Please go ahead.

25                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I do not think this will take
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 1           a long time.

 2                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

 3      BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

 4           Q.   Dr. Vander Weide, I intend to ask you some

 5      questions about one area of disagreement between you and

 6      Dr. Woolridge.  But as starters, you will agree that

 7      both you and Dr. Woolridge agree that the appropriate

 8      growth rate to be applied in the DCF formula is the

 9      long-term growth rate; correct?

10           A.   Not entirely.  I agree that it's the long-term

11      growth rate of investors that is reflected in stock

12      prices.

13           Q.   And you defined that in your testimony

14      yesterday as three to five years.  That's the basis for

15      your analysis; correct?

16           A.   No, that's incorrect.  I suggested that

17      analysts' growth rates generally reflect their estimates

18      of growth for three to five years, but since there are

19      no other long-term growth rates available, investors

20      generally use those three- to five-year growth rates as

21      estimates of long-term growth.  And the evidence for

22      that is based on the fact that the analysts' long-term

23      growth rates are reflected in stock prices for

24      utilities, whereas historical and what are sometimes

25      called sustainable growth rates are not.
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 1           Q.   With respect to the use of analysts'

 2      projections, you disagree with Dr. Woolridge's assertion

 3      that those projections are upwardly biased; correct?

 4           A.   Yes.  Not only do I disagree with him in that

 5      regard; it doesn't even matter whether they were

 6      upwardly biased.  It's whether investors use those

 7      growth rates when they make stock buy and sell

 8      decisions.  But to be absolutely clear, there is no

 9      evidence whatsoever that they are upwardly biased.

10           Q.   Please turn to page 22 of your rebuttal.  Do

11      you see Table 3 there, "Articles that Study Whether

12      Analysts' Forecasts Are Biased Toward Optimism"?

13           A.   Yes.

14           Q.   You list nine articles in that table, do you

15      not?

16           A.   Yes.

17           Q.   Looking at the first one, can you tell me the

18      time frame of analysts' projections that were studied by

19      the authors, Crichfield, Dyckman and Lakonishok?

20           A.   I'm sorry.  I missed the last part of your

21      question.

22           Q.   That's because I struggled with this last

23      surname, I believe.

24                Can you tell me the time frames that were

25      reviewed by the authors of the first article that's
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 1      listed there?

 2           A.   Those articles -- those would have been prior

 3      to the time that the articles were published, which are

 4      shown in the schedule.

 5           Q.   Well, how long a projection period did those

 6      authors consider?  Do you know?

 7           A.   I don't recall.

 8           Q.   Well, sir, I've got those articles.  I only

 9      have one copy here.  And to expedite things, if you

10      need -- I'll ask you to accept some things subject to

11      check, and if you need to see the article to answer the

12      question, we'll find a way to do that.

13                But would you agree subject to check that this

14      first article looks at forecasts of annual EPS and not

15      three- to five-year growth rate forecasts?

16           A.   I'm sorry.  When you say a forecast of annual

17      EPS, you mean one-year forecasts of annual EPS?

18           Q.   Yes.

19           A.   I don't recall what it is.  I would accept it

20      subject to check for the purpose of cross-examination,

21      but I don't recall what it is.

22           Q.   The next article is the one by authors Elton,

23      Gruber, and Gultekin.  Do you see that?

24           A.   Yes.

25           Q.   Would you accept subject to check that this
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 1      also looks at forecasts of -- annual forecasts of EPS

 2      and not three to five years?

 3           A.   Yes.

 4                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, I've got a concern

 5           about accepting these subject to check.  I don't

 6           know how we're going to check them.  If

 7           Mr. McGlothlin would like to offer them as exhibits

 8           so that they're in the record and the parties can

 9           check them, that would alleviate my concern.

10                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'm willing to do that.  I

11           only have one copy with me.  I can make them -- I

12           can have them copied and provided, or if you want

13           to take a timeout and have the witness look at my

14           copy, I'm fine.  I had hoped to be able to expedite

15           the process, but to the extent the witness wants to

16           see the articles, I'm fine with that as well.

17                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, the next witness is

18           also going to be addressing Issue 37.  Are you

19           going to ask the same questions of that witness?

20                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  No, sir.

21                MR. MELSON:  That's not within the scope of

22           the next witness's testimony.  His scope is

23           narrower.

24                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Let's move to the

25           next witness, and then we can generate those

                   ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC.

                                                            1905

 1           companies so we can come back to Dr. Vander Weide.

 2                MR. MELSON:  Gulf calls Dr. Vilbert.

 3      Thereupon,

 4                        MICHAEL J. VILBERT

 5      was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Gulf Power

 6      Company and, having been first duly sworn, was examined

 7      and testified as follows:

 8                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

 9      BY MR. MELSON:

10           Q.   Dr. Vilbert, have you been sworn this morning?

11           A.   Yes, I have.

12           Q.   Would you please state your name and business

13      address?

14           A.   My name is Michael J. Vilbert.  The last name

15      is spelled with a V as in victor.  My business address

16      is 201 Mission Street, Suite 2800, San Francisco,

17      California.

18           Q.   And what is your occupation or profession?

19           A.   I'm a principal of the Brattle Group, which is

20      an economic consulting firm.

21           Q.   Did you prefile rebuttal testimony in this

22      docket dated November 4, 2011, consisting of 16 pages?

23           A.   Yes, I did.

24           Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

25      testimony?
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 1           A.   No, I do not.

 2           Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions today,

 3      would your answers be the same?

 4           A.   Yes, they would.

 5                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, I would ask that

 6           Dr. Vilbert's rebuttal testimony be inserted into

 7           the record as though read.

 8                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert Dr. Vilbert's

 9           direct -- I'm sorry rebuttal testimony into the

10           record as though read.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17
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 1      BY MR. MELSON:

 2           Q.   And did you have one exhibit attached to your

 3      direct testimony as Appendix A?

 4           A.   I did.

 5           Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

 6      exhibit?

 7           A.   No, I do not.

 8                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, Appendix A is the

 9           witness's resumé.  Due to an error by counsel, we

10           failed to list that in the Prehearing Order, so it

11           does not appear on the Staff's Composite Exhibit

12           List.  I apologize for that.  We would like to have

13           it assigned the next number, if we could.

14                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will assign Number 209 to

15           the witness's Appendix A.

16                MR. MELSON:  Thank you.

17                (Exhibit Number 209 was marked for

18      identification.)

19      BY MR. MELSON:

20           Q.   Dr. Vilbert, could you please briefly

21      summarize your testimony?

22           A.   Yes.  Good afternoon, Commissioners.  My

23      rebuttal testimony in this proceeding addresses the

24      importance of making a leverage adjustment to recognize

25      financial risk when setting the allowed rate of return
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 1      on equity for a regulated company.

 2                Dr. Vander Weide adjusts his recommended

 3      return on equity for Gulf Power to account for

 4      differences in financial risk between his sample

 5      companies and Gulf Power.  Mr. Gorman and Dr. Woolridge

 6      dispute the adjustment on two grounds.  First, they

 7      claim that financial leverage should be measured on a

 8      book value basis rather than a market value basis.

 9      Second, Dr. Woolridge asserts that a leverage adjustment

10      would reward investors with an above-market return.

11      Neither of these two claims is valid.

12                To start, it's important to define financial

13      risk.  Financial risk is the additional risk imposed on

14      equity investors by the use of debt in a company's

15      financial structure.  Risk to equity investors increases

16      because payments on debt are made before any payments

17      are made to equity investors.

18                Dr. Vander Weide estimates a return on equity

19      using sample companies of comparable business risk.

20      However, the percentage of equity in Gulf's regulatory

21      capital structure is lower than the percentage of equity

22      in the sample companies.  This means that although Gulf

23      has comparable business risk, it has more financial risk

24      than the companies in the sample.

25                In setting Gulf's return on equity, it is
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 1      important that Gulf's overall rate of return be the same

 2      as estimated for the sample companies.  In order for

 3      this to occur, the return on equity must be adjusted to

 4      recognize the difference in financial risk.  In other

 5      words, a financial leverage adjustment is required in

 6      order to have an apples-to-apples comparison.  The

 7      purpose of the adjustment is to ensure that investors

 8      receive an overall return comparable to other companies

 9      having similar business and financial risk.  An

10      adjustment is appropriate whether you start with

11      Dr. Vander Weide's, Dr. Woolridge's, or Mr. Gorman's

12      estimate of the ROE from the sample.

13                The fundamental flaw in Dr. Woolridge and

14      Mr. Gorman's testimonies is their disregard of market

15      value capitalization in measuring a company's financial

16      leverage.  Their suggestion that financial risk is

17      properly measured by book value capital structure and

18      not market value capital structure is incorrect, both

19      theoretically and practically.

20                On a theoretical basis, it is indisputable

21      that financial risk increases as the percentage of debt

22      in the capital structure increases.  Every financial

23      textbook of which I'm aware notes that financial risk is

24      appropriately measured by a company's market value

25      capital structure, not its book value capital structure
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 1      as suggested by Mr. Gorman and Dr. Woolridge.

 2                On a practical basis, consider the example of

 3      a mortgage lender.  If you refinance the mortgage on

 4      your home, the lender does not care about the home's

 5      book value, that is, what you originally paid for the

 6      property, when it evaluates the riskiness of the loan.

 7      Instead, the lender is concerned about the relationship

 8      between the home's market value and the loan amount.  To

 9      insist upon looking at the book value as a basis for

10      measuring risk is simply incorrect.  Likewise, an

11      investor in equity looks to the market value to measure

12      risk.

13                The approach used by Dr. Vander Weide does not

14      conflict with any regulatory procedures in Florida,

15      including the use of a book value rate base.

16      Dr. Vander Weide is not making a market-to-book ratio

17      adjustment.  In particular, even if the market-to-book

18      value ratio were greater than one, but the regulatory

19      capital structure for Gulf Power had more equity than

20      the sample companies, the approach would reduce the ROE,

21      not increase it, as is appropriate in this proceeding.

22                The approach does not claim that the financial

23      risk of Gulf Power changes as you move from a book value

24      capital structure to a market value capital structure.

25      The approach simply recognizes that the financial risk
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 1      inherent in Gulf Power's regulated rate base is

 2      different from the financial risk of the sample

 3      companies used to estimate the cost of capital.

 4                In summary, Dr. Vander Weide's financial risk

 5      adjustment is based on sound financial theory, is

 6      consistent with investors' practical evaluation of risk,

 7      and is absolutely appropriate in this proceeding.

 8                MR. MELSON:  We tender Dr. Vilbert for cross.

 9                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. McGlothlin?

10                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  OPC has no questions of this

11           witness.

12                MR. MOYLE:  We have just a few on behalf of

13           FIPUG.

14                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

15      BY MR. MOYLE:

16           Q.   What's the percent of debt currently as

17      proposed in the capital structure of Gulf, if you know?

18           A.   It's roughly 54 percent.

19           Q.   In the proxy group, what is it?

20           A.   It's about 45 percent.

21           Q.   And you're aware that Dr. Vander Weide in Iowa

22      had proposed a basis adjustment of 40 basis points and

23      today is proposing a basis adjustment of 90?

24           A.   I don't know what Dr. Vander Weide recommended

25      in Iowa.  I know that in this proceeding it's 90 basis
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 1      points.

 2           Q.   And this is a challenging area, a lot of

 3      finance, but as I understand it, the equity that is in

 4      Gulf derives from a sole source; is that right?

 5           A.   It's my understanding that the equity in Gulf

 6      comes from Southern Company.

 7           Q.   Okay.  And the reason that Gulf is seeking

 8      another 10, $12 million related to this financial

 9      adjustment, maybe a little less, is because of this

10      difference in the capital structure that we just talked

11      about, right, the 54 percent debt in Gulf versus the 45

12      in the others?

13           A.   Yes.  All the methods used by Dr. Woolridge,

14      Dr. Vander Weide, and Mr. Gorman use market information

15      to estimate the cost of equity, and that cost of equity

16      is a function of the business risk of the companies as

17      well as the financial risk of the companies.  And that

18      financial risk, properly measured on a market value

19      basis, is different from the financial risk of the

20      regulated entity capital structure in this case, Gulf

21      Power.

22           Q.   Don't you think the way this is set up with

23      Southern being the sole provider of the equity -- I

24      mean, if somebody wanted to increase their return on

25      equity and could use the capital structure in a way to
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 1      do it, you know, why -- it seems to me that Southern

 2      Company could reduce their equity further, so rather

 3      than having 54 percent debt, they could have 64 or 74,

 4      and increase the debt, which would make the company

 5      riskier, and then they would increase the ROE even more.

 6      Does that logically flow, to your mind?

 7           A.   No.  This is the key aspect of what

 8      Dr. Vander Weide and I are recommending.  The cost of

 9      capital for a regulated entity, or really any company,

10      is a constant across a broad middle range of capital

11      structures.  If that were not true, companies could

12      increase the value of their firm simply by adjusting the

13      capital structure.

14                Inherent in the question is the belief that if

15      you substitute cheap equity for expensive -- I'm sorry,

16      cheap debt for expensive debt, that you could lower the

17      cost of capital.  But companies are already financed.

18      They know that they can substitute debt for equity, and

19      if that would achieve a higher value for their firms,

20      they would do that.

21                So what is happening when you substitute debt

22      for equity, you increase the cost of equity to offset

23      the savings from the cost of debt so that on a net

24      basis, the overall cost of capital is unchanged by that

25      procedure.  You don't gain anything from doing it.
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 1           Q.   It's not your testimony that the capital

 2      structure in Gulf doesn't vary over time, is it?

 3           A.   No, that's not my testimony.

 4           Q.   And indeed, in businesses, the capital

 5      structure -- they vary regularly and routinely; correct?

 6           A.   Yes.  The point I just made, however, was that

 7      the overall cost of capital is not affected by small

 8      changes in their capital structure.

 9           Q.   But with respect to incentives, wouldn't it be

10      an incentive, to the extent that there is a financial

11      risk adjustment, to increase the amount of debt to the

12      extent that you could then get a higher return on

13      equity?

14           A.   Again, the point is that --

15           Q.   If you can just answer yes or no, I would

16      appreciate it.

17           A.   Certainly.  No.  The answer is no.  The --

18                MR. MOYLE:  That's all I have.  That's all I

19           have.  Thank you.

20                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Wright?

21                MR. WRIGHT:  No questions.  Thank you,

22           Mr. Chairman.

23                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

24                MS. KLANCKE:  No questions.

25                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?
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 1                        REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 2      BY MR. MELSON:

 3           Q.   Mr. Moyle asked about capital structures

 4      changing from time to time.  Do you know whether the

 5      capital structure proposed by Gulf in this case is the

 6      same as the capital structure approved by the Commission

 7      in their last rate case 10 years ago?

 8           A.   I don't know.

 9                MR. MELSON:  No further questions.

10                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Any exhibits for this

11           witness?

12                MR. MELSON:  Yes, as soon as I can find the

13           number.  209.

14                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll enter 209 into the

15           record.

16                (Exhibit Number 209 was admitted into the

17      record.)

18                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Anything else?

19                MR. MELSON:  And may this witness be excused?

20                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  If there's no questions or

21           concerns with this witness, sir, you're excused.

22           Thank you very much.

23                Mr. McGlothlin, shall we go to the next

24           witness?

25                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  The next witness or the next
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 1           party to cross Dr. Vander Weide.  We still are in

 2           the process of making those copies.

 3                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Moyle, do you want to go

 4           ahead with --

 5                MR. MOYLE:  Sure.

 6                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.

 7           Dr. Vander Weide, we're going to call you back up

 8           here.  Do you feel like a yo-yo yet?

 9                Sir, thank you for your patience.

10      Thereupon,

11                       JAMES H. VANDER WEIDE

12      having been previously called as a rebuttal witness on

13      behalf of Gulf Power Company, resumed the stand and

14      testified as follows:

15                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

16      BY MR. MOYLE:

17           Q.   Good afternoon.

18           A.   Good afternoon.

19           Q.   When we spoke previously, when you were

20      testifying on direct, I asked you whether in your view

21      nuclear generation imposed a greater risk, and I believe

22      you answered the question by saying you couldn't answer

23      the question.  Is that your recollection?

24                MR. MELSON:  Objection.  This is beyond the

25           scope of his rebuttal testimony.  We're here
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 1           cross-examining rebuttal.

 2                MR. MOYLE:  Maybe a little latitude on this.

 3           I'll bring it back.

 4                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

 5      BY MR. MOYLE:

 6           Q.   Do utilities that have nuclear generation

 7      impose greater risk, in your opinion?

 8           A.   As I suggested yesterday, and I still agree

 9      that one would have to examine the individual

10      circumstances.  They don't -- a universal statement

11      would not be appropriate with regard to nuclear

12      generation or any other type of generation.

13           Q.   And for the purposes of the conversation,

14      we're talking in generalities.  You'll accept that;

15      right?

16           A.   Yes, with all the limits of such generalities

17      for this case.

18           Q.   So Fukushima, Chernobyl, Three Mile Island, in

19      your mind, they don't suggest that nuclear generation

20      imposes greater risk than non-nuclear generation?

21                MR. MELSON:  Objection again.  This is pretty

22           far afield from anything having to do with an issue

23           in this case.

24                MR. MOYLE:  This is my last question.

25                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow the witness to
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 1           answer the question if he chooses to.

 2           A.   Well, first of all, only one of the three

 3      incidents that you discussed occurred in the United

 4      States, and that one occurred, if I recall, in the early

 5      1980s.  I may be wrong on the date, but it certainly was

 6      a long time ago.

 7                Right now there are, as I suggested, there are

 8      both -- and also, you're not discussing -- you're not

 9      presenting a balanced view of the risks.  The risks of

10      nuclear, there are risks, but there are risks of all

11      generating facilities.  There are risks associated with

12      coal, and that's why society has decided to have some

13      environmental regulations on coal.

14           Q.   Okay.

15           A.   So their relevance is -- the issue is whether

16      the risks, when all things are considered, are greater

17      than other alternatives, and I don't see that they are

18      universally.

19           Q.   What prompted these questions is because you

20      have provided in a late-filed exhibit average return on

21      equities of only integrated utility companies; correct?

22           A.   Yes, because Gulf Power is an integrated

23      utility company.

24           Q.   Okay.  But there also is a lot of information

25      about return on equities for non-integrated companies;
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 1      correct?

 2           A.   Not in that exhibit.

 3           Q.   But there is information out there from S&L

 4      that would show non-integrated utilities' return on

 5      equity; correct?

 6           A.   Yes.  And what I suggested is that that

 7      information is not relevant to Gulf Power, because

 8      integrated electric utilities are generally considered

 9      more risky than distribution-only electric utilities,

10      and Gulf Power is an integrated electric utility.

11           Q.   So the difference between an integrated and a

12      non-integrated is generation?

13           A.   Well, I would characterize it that the

14      difference is that the distribution-only electric

15      utilities only provide distribution services.

16           Q.   So integrated provides generation and

17      transmission?

18           A.   And distribution.

19           Q.   And I assume the higher return on equity is

20      suggested -- I think you actually made a comment about

21      it in your summary opening statement -- is because it's

22      an integrated company, there's greater risks associated

23      with it; is that right?

24           A.   The investment community -- I was suggesting

25      the investment community views there to be greater risk
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 1      associated with being an integrated electric utility,

 2      and that the allowed rates of return hence are higher

 3      for integrated electric utilities than distribution-only

 4      electric utilities.

 5           Q.   You answered by saying that's how the

 6      investment community views it.  Does your view coincide

 7      with the investment community?

 8           A.   Yes.

 9           Q.   Okay.  So that would be an answer to my

10      earlier question, which is, integrated utilities that

11      have generation impose greater risk, in your view and in

12      the view of the investment community?

13           A.   Yes, the integrated electric utilities are

14      viewed both by the investment community and by me as

15      being a greater risk than distribution-only electric

16      utilities.

17           Q.   And are there any studies that you can refer

18      me to that support that view?

19           A.   Yes.  The schedule that you have in your hands

20      would support that view, that the allowed rates of

21      return for integrated electric utilities exceed the

22      allowed rates of return for distribution-only electric

23      utilities, the difference being about 10.5 versus about

24      10.2.  And if the risk -- and the reason that those

25      allowed rates of return are higher for integrated
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 1      electric utilities is that the investment community

 2      views them as being of greater risk.

 3           Q.   Does the view of the investment community with

 4      respect to the risk associated with nuclear generation

 5      coincide with your view, that is, that nuclear

 6      generation does not impose additional risk, as I

 7      understand it, in a general context?

 8           A.   I don't believe you characterized my view

 9      accurately.  My view is that one would have to examine

10      specifically a particular utility with regard to their

11      nuclear or non-nuclear generation, that it wouldn't be

12      possible, in my view, to make a universal statement

13      about a generality, in other words, about the risk of

14      nuclear compared to other options.

15           Q.   The document that is the late-filed exhibit,

16      is that a -- have you used generalities in preparing

17      this document, or have you delved into the specifics of

18      all the utilities represented on this list?

19           A.   I don't -- your statement isn't about the same

20      thing.  You're talking about two different things.

21           Q.   I understand.

22           A.   I'm not talking about generalities.  I'm

23      talking about the specific numbers that were allowed for

24      these companies.  Whether I delved into them or not

25      wouldn't affect the allowed return for those companies.
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 1           Q.   Okay.  Well, just for the purposes of the

 2      record, have you delved into the particulars of these

 3      companies that are on your exhibit?

 4           A.   I'm generally familiar with them.  I didn't do

 5      so as part of preparing that exhibit, but I'm generally

 6      familiar with those companies.

 7           Q.   So if I asked you questions about the

 8      specifics of these companies, you would be able to

 9      answer them?

10           A.   I don't know until I hear the question.

11           Q.   What are the clauses that are available to

12      Avista Corporation in Idaho with respect to recovery of

13      costs?

14           A.   I believe I answered that with regard to the

15      direct testimony that I haven't studied the specific

16      clauses for every electric utility, either in my proxy

17      group or in the country, but that most electric

18      utilities have cost recovery clauses for many of their

19      expenses, and that because those recovery clauses are

20      similar, the group of proxy companies that I have are of

21      similar risk to Gulf Power.

22           Q.   So other than the document that you referred

23      me to, there's no other study that does an analysis that

24      looks at the risks of an integrated electric utility as

25      compared to a non-integrated electric utility; is that a
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 1      correct statement?

 2           A.   I don't believe it's a correct statement.  I

 3      already cited the evidence that allowed rates of return

 4      for integrated utilities are higher than the allowed

 5      rate of returns for distribution-only electric

 6      utilities.  And since investors demand higher returns

 7      for greater risk, that would be evidence in and of

 8      itself that the investment community views integrated

 9      electric utilities as having higher risk than

10      distribution-only electric utilities.

11           Q.   Okay.  So other than return on equity

12      financial analysis, you're not aware of any study that

13      has been done that looks specifically at the relative

14      risk of a wires-only company as compared to a fully

15      integrated utility company; is that correct?  If you

16      could answer yes or no, I would appreciate it.

17           A.   I don't think a yes or no would be

18      informative, because --

19                MR. MOYLE:  Mr. Chairman, could I please have

20           a yes or no?

21                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  If he doesn't understand the

22           question, he can restate the question.

23      BY MR. MOYLE:

24           Q.   Do you understand the question?

25           A.   I believe I understood it, but now that a
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 1      little bit of time has passed, I would like you to

 2      repeat it.

 3           Q.   Okay.  I'm trying to get you to admit that

 4      you're not aware of any study that has been done by a

 5      group of engineers or a blue panel committee or anyone

 6      that you're aware of that has looked at the relative

 7      risk of an integrated electric company, which you've

 8      defined as distribution, transmission, and generation,

 9      as compared to a wires-only company.  And I've asked you

10      that question a few times, and you've referred me to,

11      the proof, in your view, is the return on equities.

12                And I'm simply trying to ask you, please

13      confirm that you're not aware of any study out there,

14      non-financial return on equity based, that looks at and

15      compares the risk of an integrated electric utility

16      company as compared to a wires-only company.  There's no

17      study out there, no study as I described that you can

18      cite me to; correct?

19           A.   Now you're asking a different question.  Your

20      first question was was I aware of any, and I have not

21      attempted to find any other studies.  Whether there

22      exists such a study, I do not know.  But I will say

23      that --

24                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sir, I think you answered

25           his question.  You don't know of any other study.
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 1                MR. MOYLE:  Thank you.

 2      BY MR. MOYLE:

 3           Q.   And with respect to this chart, you did

 4      exclude wires-only companies; correct?

 5           A.   Yes, as defined by distribution-only

 6      companies.

 7           Q.   And did you not include 2010 because the

 8      distance in time makes those return on equities less

 9      probative?

10                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, this was an exhibit

11           that someone asked him to prepare.  I believe the

12           Staff asked for current year data.  The Staff asked

13           for integrated electric utilities.

14           Dr. Vander Weide has simply prepared exactly what

15           was requested.

16                MR. MOYLE:  I can rephrase.

17                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

18      BY MR. MOYLE:

19           Q.   Would you agree that having this information

20      that is contained on this exhibit that included 2010

21      data -- would it be appropriate to include 2010 data, in

22      your professional judgment?

23           A.   Well, as was just discussed, it wouldn't be

24      appropriate in response to the request that was made by

25      the Staff.  I will say that the numbers -- there is no
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 1      difference, from my recall of the numbers for 2010 as

 2      for 2011.

 3           Q.   And with respect to probative value, would

 4      2010 be less probative than 2011, in your professional

 5      opinion?

 6           A.   It depends on what question you're asking.  If

 7      you're asking what were the allowed returns in 2011, it

 8      would not be very probative, and it was my understanding

 9      that that was the question.

10           Q.   If you were asking what would be an

11      appropriate return on equity based on a national

12      average?

13           A.   I think both would be informative.  I just

14      testified that in my belief, the average allowed return

15      on equity in 2010 was certainly as -- not significantly

16      different from the average allowed return on equity in

17      2011.

18           Q.   Yes, sir.  I thought your answer was going to

19      be no, because when we talked earlier, I thought you

20      said that return on equity was never to try to establish

21      a fair return at a particular point in time in question.

22      And so it followed in my mind that more recent data is

23      more probative than stale data.  Am I incorrect in that?

24           A.   All data reflects a sample.  Where you cut off

25      the data for the sample is a matter of judgment.  I was
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 1      responding to a request for average allowed returns for

 2      2011, and that's what that exhibit establishes.  And I

 3      also suggested that I don't I believe there was any

 4      difference between 2010 and 2011, So d I would be happy

 5      to discuss either.  But all I've done was respond to a

 6      request for 2011.

 7                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Moyle, I think we need

 8           to move on.

 9                MR. MOYLE:  Okay.

10      BY MR. MOYLE:

11           Q.   Have the returns, the cost of capital in the

12      last six months gone down?

13           A.   I don't see any evidence that they've gone

14      down, no.

15           Q.   Debt costs haven't gone down?

16           A.   Debt costs have gone down, but we're talking

17      -- I'm talking about the cost of equity.

18                MR. MOYLE:  That's all I have.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.  Major Thompson?

20                MAJOR THOMPSON:  No questions.

21                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Wright?

22                MR. WRIGHT:  No questions, Mr. Chairman.

23           Thank you.

24                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

25                MS. KLANCKE:  No questions.
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 1                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  That brings it back to me.

 2                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We'll go to the

 3           Commissioners, and we'll come back to you.

 4                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Thank you.

 5                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioner Balbis.

 6                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

 7           I just have two questions.  And I believe this was

 8           answered by another witness, but do you know what

 9           the revenue requirement for 100 basis points for

10           Gulf Power is?

11                THE WITNESS:  No, I do not.

12                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  In your rebuttal

13           testimony, you were providing testimony in response

14           to other expert witnesses that have recommended a

15           different return on equity than you recommended;

16           correct?

17                THE WITNESS:  Yes.

18                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  And we have heard from

19           these witnesses or experts a range of returns, I

20           believe, and one of them was 9.75.  Do you recall

21           that?

22                THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.

23                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And you're

24           recommending 11.70; correct?

25                THE WITNESS:  Yes.
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 1                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  What would be the impact

 2           to Gulf Power and/or its customers if the

 3           Commission were to determine that 9.75 percent is

 4           an appropriate ROE?

 5                THE WITNESS:  Well, clearly, the revenue

 6           requirement would be less with a 9.75 percent

 7           return than a 11.2 percent return.  However, my

 8           understanding is that the obligation of a -- of our

 9           investigation is to determine a fair return.  And a

10           fair return as defined by the Supreme Court is a

11           return that is commensurate with returns on other

12           investments of the same risk, and I have estimated

13           that to be 11.7 percent.

14                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  So would there be

15           any impact on Gulf's ability to attract capital

16           with a 9.75 percent?

17                THE WITNESS:  I believe that except in extreme

18           circumstances, it's generally possible to obtain

19           capital.  The question is, what return do you have

20           to offer in order to get that capital?

21                I believe that if Gulf were not able to -- did

22           not have an opportunity to earn a return that's

23           commensurate with returns on other investments of

24           the same risk, that its risk would increase, which

25           would increase its required return.
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 1                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Then the last

 2           question concerning this Late-filed Exhibit 186,

 3           where you have the average returns for 2011 --

 4                THE WITNESS:  Yes.

 5                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  The two highest return

 6           on equities that are listed on this exhibit are the

 7           two Virginia Electric and Power cases of

 8           12.30 percent; is that correct?

 9                THE WITNESS:  Yes.

10                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Did that 12.30 percent

11           include any basis point performance incentives?

12                THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware that it did, but

13           it was among the listed allowed returns.  There

14           were returns that were both above the average and

15           below the average.  There are special

16           circumstances.  One might suggest there are special

17           circumstances for any one of those companies.  This

18           is the average allowed return across the country.

19                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  And you would

20           agree that 11.70 percent, according to this

21           exhibit, would be the third highest return on

22           equity listed?

23                THE WITNESS:  I would agree that my

24           recommended 11.7 is above the average allowed

25           return.  And I don't have that exhibit with me.
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 1           Perhaps it is -- well, maybe I do have it here.

 2                Perhaps it is the third highest, but the 11.7

 3           is still what my recommended return is.

 4                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.

 5                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. McGlothlin, do you have

 6           any other questions of this witness?

 7                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  No, sir.  The only line of

 8           questions I have relates to Table 3.

 9                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  We'll just table

10           him and move forward with Mr. Teel and come back to

11           him.

12                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  All right.  Thank you.

13                MR. MELSON:  Gulf calls Mr. Teel.  And,

14           Commissioner Balbis, I believe Mr. Teel can

15           probably give you an answer to your question about

16           100 basis points.

17      Thereupon,

18                           R. SCOTT TEEL

19      was called as a rebuttal witness on behalf of Gulf Power

20      Company and, having been first duly sworn, was examined

21      and testified as follows:

22                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

23      BY MR. MELSON:

24           Q.   Mr. Teel, you understand you're still under

25      oath?
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 1           A.   Yes, I do.

 2           Q.   Would you please state your name and business

 3      address again?

 4           A.   My name is Scott Teel.  I work at One Energy

 5      Place, Pensacola, Florida, 32520.

 6           Q.   And by whom are you employed, and in what

 7      capacity?

 8           A.   I'm employed by Gulf Power Company as vice

 9      president and chief financial officer.

10           Q.   And did you prefile rebuttal testimony in this

11      docket dated November 4, 2011, consisting of eight

12      pages?

13           A.   I did.

14           Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections to that

15      testimony?

16           A.   I do not.

17           Q.   And if I were to ask you the same questions

18      today, would your answers be the same?

19           A.   They would.

20                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, I ask that

21           Mr. Teel's rebuttal testimony be inserted into the

22           record as though read.

23                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will insert Mr. Teel's

24           rebuttal testimony into the record as though read.

25
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 1      BY MR. MELSON:

 2           Q.   And you had an Exhibit RST-2 to your rebuttal

 3      testimony consisting of three schedules; is that

 4      correct?

 5           A.   I do.

 6           Q.   And do you have any changes or corrections to

 7      that exhibit?

 8           A.   No, I do not.

 9                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, it has been

10           identified in the Prehearing Order or the

11           consolidated exhibit list as number 159.

12                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  So noted.

13      BY MR. MELSON:

14           Q.   Mr. Teel, could you give us a brief summary of

15      your testimony?

16           A.   Yes, I can.

17                Commissioners, Gulf Power's credit quality is

18      at risk.  The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to

19      address FEA witness Mr. Gorman's assertions that even if

20      granted his recommended return, Gulf will be able to

21      maintain its investment grade rating of BBB and clarify

22      statements made by OPC witness Ms. Dismukes regarding

23      affiliate credit ratings.

24                Mr. Gorman makes inaccurate assumptions and

25      performs an inadequate assessment in reaching his
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 1      conclusions.  Mr. Gorman first incorrectly identified

 2      Gulf's current credit ratings as BBB.  Since, he has

 3      acknowledged that mistake and corrected it this morning.

 4                More importantly, he incorrectly assumes that

 5      a rating considered investment grade is sufficient.  It

 6      is not.  We target "A" ratings.  A rating as low as BBB

 7      minus is considered investment grade.

 8                Additionally, Mr. Gorman's credit analysis

 9      falls far short of the comprehensive assessment of the

10      credit rating agencies.  He makes no mention of key

11      qualitative factors.  In fact, an authorization of his

12      recommended rate of return could have an adverse effect

13      on the credit rating agencies' assessment of not only

14      Gulf, but all Florida investor-owned utilities.

15                Credit rating agencies' opinions are

16      important, because they do influence investors and a

17      company's ability to access capital on reasonable terms.

18      We need access in both stable and turbulent economic

19      environments.  Rating downgrades could put that access

20      at risk.

21                I also address a portion of Ms. Dismukes'

22      testimony, but only to clarify that Gulf's unregulated

23      affiliate credit ratings are not benefited from its

24      association with Gulf or any of its regulated

25      affiliates.
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 1                That concludes my summary.

 2                MR. MELSON:  We tender Mr. Teel for cross.

 3                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  No questions.

 4                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

 5      BY MR. MOYLE:

 6           Q.   Just a couple following up on a question that

 7      was asked from the bench.  A hundred basis points, how

 8      much does that represent in terms of revenue?

 9           A.   That's approximately $10 million, possibly a

10      little bit more with the inclusion of the Crist turbine

11      upgrades.

12           Q.   So the difference between what your witness is

13      suggesting and what the witness from OPC is suggesting

14      is how much?

15           A.   I suppose the difference is approximately 200

16      basis points, so that would represent about $20 million.

17           Q.   Okay.  And the achieved return on equity in

18      2010 was what?

19           A.   In 2010, we achieved a return on equity of

20      9 1/2 percent.

21           Q.   And in 2011?

22           A.   And in 2011, through October, we're at about

23      5.4 percent.

24           Q.   Okay.  So if OPC's position to go up to the 9

25      range was adopted, it would double the return on equity
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 1      from 2011; is that right, approximately?

 2           A.   It would, approximately.

 3                MR. MOYLE:  That's all I have.  Thank you.

 4                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Major Thompson?

 5                MAJOR THOMPSON:  No questions.

 6                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Wright?

 7                MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Just an

 8           quick follow-up on Mr. Moyle's questions.

 9                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

10      BY MR. WRIGHT:

11           Q.   Good afternoon -- yes, it is afternoon.  Good

12      afternoon, Mr. Teel.

13           A.   Good afternoon, Mr. Wright.

14           Q.   Mr. Moyle asked you about the difference in

15      revenue requirements as between OPC's position of

16      9.25 percent and the company's position of 11.7.  In

17      your response, I thought you said you thought the

18      differential there was about 200 basis points.  It's

19      really closer to 250, is it not?

20           A.   I understood his question to be regarding

21      Mr. Gorman's recommendation, which is what I address in

22      my rebuttal.

23           Q.   Okay.  That was what I thought your answer

24      was.  So you would agree that -- your answer was with

25      respect to Mr. Gorman's 9.75 percent?
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 1           A.   That's right.

 2           Q.   And with respect to Dr. Woolridge's

 3      recommendation, the difference would be about

 4      $25 million; correct?

 5           A.   Yes.

 6                MR. WRIGHT:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

 7                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

 8                MS. BARRERA:  Just a couple of questions.

 9                         CROSS-EXAMINATION

10      BY MS. BARRERA:

11           Q.   Do you know when Southern Company first issued

12      debt at the parent company level?

13           A.   No, I do not recall that.

14           Q.   And do you know if Southern Company had debt

15      at the parent company level reflected on its books at

16      the time the company filed its last rate case?

17           A.   Yes.  My understanding is they did have debt

18      on the books at the time of the last rate case.

19                MS. BARRERA:  Thank you.  I have no more

20           questions.

21                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners?  Commissioner

22           Balbis.

23                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

24           I would like to pose the same questions I asked the

25           previous witness, and I know Mr. Moyle already
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 1           clarified the 100 basis point issue.

 2                I'm sure you understand the position we're in.

 3           We have several witnesses and experts that are

 4           presenting testimony of significant differences in

 5           appropriate ROEs, so bear with me as I try and

 6           flesh this out.

 7                I would like to pose the same question to you.

 8           If this Commission decides that the lower testified

 9           appropriate ROE is found appropriate, whether it's

10           9.25 or 9.75, what impact to Gulf Power would that

11           be?

12                THE WITNESS:  I would tell you that puts us in

13           a -- would put us in a very difficult position with

14           respect to our customers.  We are interested in

15           serving the best interests of our customers in the

16           long term.  If we are awarded a return on equity

17           less than that required of an investor, that puts

18           us in the position of making a decision as to

19           whether we cut some costs out of our business that

20           are otherwise needed to serve customers in the near

21           term to provide the required rate of return to an

22           investor, or if, in turn, we accept the fact that

23           we're going to provide a return less than that

24           required of an investor, and that in turn puts our

25           access to capital at risk in the long term.
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 1                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So assuming that you now

 2           would have a diminished access to capital, what

 3           would that result in?

 4                THE WITNESS:  The diminished access to capital

 5           puts us in a position of not potentially getting

 6           the money on reasonable terms to serve the

 7           customers.  And I would suggest to you that there

 8           were utilities who did have that access to capital

 9           on reasonable terms at risk during the most recent

10           financial crisis.

11                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  So would it be true then

12           that you would have to access capital at a higher

13           cost to Gulf, which in turn would be passed on to

14           the ratepayers?

15                THE WITNESS:  Certainly.

16                COMMISSIONER BALBIS:  Okay.  Thank you.

17                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Redirect?

18                MR. MELSON:  No redirect.  Move Exhibit 159.

19                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will move Exhibit 159

20           into the record, which is on page 26.

21                (Exhibit Number 159 was admitted into the

22      record.)

23                MR. MELSON:  And may Mr. Teel now be excused?

24                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  If there are no further

25           questions of Mr. Teel, yes, sir, you can be
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 1           excused.

 2                THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 3                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. McGlothlin, are you

 4           ready to continue with Mr. Vander Weide?

 5                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  A moment to check.

 6                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

 7                MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We're getting close, I'm

 8           told.  It's a matter of collating the copies that

 9           have been made now.

10                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  We'll go on to

11           the next witness, then.

12                MR. MELSON:  Mr. Chairman, would it be

13           inappropriate to hope for a 15-minute-early lunch?

14                CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, why not?  We will

15           reconvene at a quarter till, so that gives you guys

16           an hour.

17                MR. MELSON:  Thank you.

18                (Proceedings recessed at 12:45 p.m.)

19                (Transcript continues in sequence in

20      Volume 11.)

21

22

23

24
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